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SISTERS OF CHARITY OF OUR LADY OF MERCY  CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
 

Hanna Dempsey was born in Prescott, C.W., Ontario, Canada, in 1846.  The records do not provide any 

information about her family or her life prior to her entrance into the Community on March 10, 1869 at age 

23.  Hanna (Johanna) became Sister M. Philomena when she was received into the Community on 

November 21, 1869.  She was professed two years later on November 21, 1871.  On the occasion of her 

Golden Jubilee in 1919 the newspaper stated: “For a quarter of a century she devoted her energy and talent 

to the progress and upbuilding of Saint Joseph’s Academy, Sumter.”  Sr. M. de Lourdes Boyle in her thesis  

“A Retrospect of the First Educational System in Sumter, SC” wrote, “Sister M. Loretto Quinlan was assisted 

in the great work of building St. Joseph’s Chapel by Sister M. Euphemia and Sister M. Philomena, who were 

untiring in their efforts to obtain the necessary funds for the erection and completion of the edifice. The 

Chapel became a hallowed spot for the Sumter Catholics.”  She also noted that Sr. M. Philomena Dempsey 

succeeded Sister M. Loretto as Directress (1900-1903) and did excellent work in removing prejudice from 

the minds of many non-Catholics.”  Following her election as Mother Assistant of the OLM Community in 

1903 Sr. M. Philomena returned to Charleston.  In 1911 she was again elected Mother Assistant for the next 

three years.  Simultaneously, she served as the Sister in Charge of the City Orphan Asylum on Queen Street. 

When relieved of that responsibility, in 1915 or 1916, Sister Philomena remained at the orphanage until 

 

Sister 

M. Philomena Dempsey 

 
Sr. Anne Francis Campbell 
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1922.  Apparently, she spent the rest of her life at the Motherhouse, 68 Legare Street, until her death on 

September 1, 1936 at age 90. Sister Philomena is buried in St. Lawrence Cemetery.  
St. Joseph’s Academy, Sumter      St. Joseph’s Chapel 

   
 

 

 

 

Sarah Daly, the future Sr. De Chantal, was born in Troy, NY, on August 7, 1832 and baptized the same day 

according to the records of St. Peter’s Church in Troy.  There is no information in our records about her life 

prior to her entrance into the Community on May 20, 1856. At the time she was 24 years old and a widow. 

The Marriage Register of St. Mary’s Church, Charleston, records the marriage of Sarah Daly and William 

Cleary on September 8, 1850. However, we do not know when or how her husband died.  On November 21, 

1856, Sarah received the name Sr. De Chantal perhaps because Saint Jane Frances De Chantal was also a 

widow. Two years later, November 29, 1858, Sr. DE Chantal was profess as a Sister of Our Lady of Mercy.  

 

During the Civil War Sr. De Chantal served on the nursing staff of the Confederate Military Hospital in 

Montgomery White Sulphur Springs, Virginia. In 1869 during the first election of OLM Community 

Officers held after the war, Sister De Chantal was elected Procuratrix whose responsibility was to provide 

for the daily wants of the Community. In 1875 a newly elected OLM Council appointed her to take charge 

of the Boys’ Orphanage which Bishop Patrick Lynch had established in 1867. She served in that position 

until elected OLM General Treasurer in 1878. Four years later, in October 1882, the Community established 

St. Francis Xavier Hospital in Charleston and appointed Sr. De Chantal its Superintendent. During the 

nineteen years of her administration the hospital grew in size and services. New buildings were added in 

1896 and 1900. In 1896 St. Francis was designated a United States Marine Hospital. The Spanish American 

War brought many casualties to Charleston and these soldiers and marines were treated in St. Francis Xavier 

Hospital in a section of the 1896 Annex which became known as “the Marine Ward.”  Sister De Chantal was 

also involved in the establishment of St. Francis Xavier School of Nursing which opened in October 1900. 

She was then almost seventy years old and in failing health. She resigned as Superintendent in June 1901. 

Three months later, on September 19, 1901, she died at the OLM Motherhouse on Meeting Street (now 

known as the Russell House). She is buried in Saint Lawrence Cemetery.  

 

Sister De Chantal Clary 
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Miss Mary McKenna, Superintendent of the SFX School on Nursing in 1901, described Sr. De Chantal as “a 

magnificent woman, dignified and capable, and thoroughly in sympathy with all things which meant 

progress for her Community.” The obituary notice in the Charleston News and Courier on September 20, 

1901 stated: “During the war, she formed one of the band of Sisters of Mercy who nursed the sick and 

wounded soldiers of the Lost Cause in the hospital’s of Virginia during the entire war. It was said of her that 

her touch was a balm, and her smile carried hope to many a weary and suffering soldier.” Sadly, we do not 

have a photo of Sister De Chantal.  

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Following is a letter from Sister Margaret Mary Cammann to Rev. 

Mother Mary Charles Gibson relating a remembrance from Sister 

Philomena Dempsey about Sister de Chantal. 
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Circus comes to town! 

 

Pictures of dancing circus 
horses and a two horse 
covered wagon ambulance. 
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A Monument to be proud of and the story of how the OLMs became part of it 

Sr. Carol Wentworth 

 

Religious Orders pictured on the Nuns of the Battlefield Memorial in Washington, DC, left to right 
Sisters of St. Joseph, Sisters of Our Lady of Mt. Carmel, Sisters of St. Dominic, Sisters of St. Ursula, Sisters of the Holy Cross, 
Sisters of the Poor of St. Francis, Sisters of Mercy, Sisters of Our Lady of Mercy, Daughters of Charity of St. Vincent de Paul, 

Sisters of Charity Emmitsburg, Sisters of Charity of Nazareth, Sisters of Divine Providence. 
 

On Saturday, September 20, 1924 the Nuns of the Battlefield Memorial in Washington, D.C was dedicated.  The day was also 
called “Sisters Day in DC”.   For the first time ever vowed Catholic Sisters were honored.  The United States Congress 
authorized the monument in 1918 and the Hibernians raised the necessary funds. 
 
The back story….. The idea for a national monument started with a Rhode Islander with the wonderful name of Dr. Ellen Ryan 
Jolly who was, at the turn of the 20th century, president of the Ladies' Auxiliary of the Ancient Order of Hibernians, (From 
1912-1916) a new but large (56,000 members on its inception) and politically powerful organization at the time.   July 1914, the 
National Convention of the Ancient Order of Hibernians and Ladies’ Auxiliary convened.  During the fourth session of the 
Auxiliary meeting the recommendation of Ellen Ryan Jolly to erect a monument in Washington, DC to the memory and in 
honor of the Sister Nurses of the Civil War was passed by unanimous vote.  She went to Washington and presented the 
petition for the monument to the officials of the War Department.  It was made very clear to her that “absolute proofs of the 
services rendered by the Sisters during the Civil War must be submitted to the War Department before it could conscientiously 
approve the granting of a site and the permission to erect the Nuns’ Memorial on government property”.  This was the law and 
Ellen accepted the ruling and for one year, Dr. Jolly researched the roles of Nuns in the American civil war and compiled 
enough evidence to bring her case before congress to ask that a monument be built in their honor.   Her campaign was 
championed by her Congressman, an Irishman named Ambrose Kennedy.  The Congress, aware of the growing political clout 
of the Irish-American and Catholic communities, agreed and the monument was commissioned. Her labor of love would soon 
reveal to the world the nearly forgotten heroism of the brave and saintly women, the Nuns of the Battlefield who served the 
soldiers of the two armies during the Civil War. The “Nuns Monument Resolution, No. 154” was buried in committee for nearly 
two years.  The Resolution was finally presented to the Congress, debated and passed on March 18, 1918, the legislative feast 
of St. Patrick.  
 
The following letter was received by Mother Stanislaus from Mrs. Jolly in May of 1919. 
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Mother Stanislaus sent Mrs. Jolly the following information noted in Council minutes of December 3, 1861.   
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Gonzalez 
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This newspaper article appeared in the 
Catholic Union and Times, Buffalo, NY 
in July 1919.  Perhaps this is the news 
Sister Stanislaus read initiating the 
above letter to Mrs. Jolly asking her to 
be sure to include the Sisters of Our 
Lady of Mercy on the Monument!  As 
you can see we were not included in the 
plans of 1919!  Yet, she persisted! 
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The following letter from Mrs. Jolly gave directions for receiving military markers for OLMs.  You 
can see these grave stones in St. Lawrence Cemetery. 
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Sr. Stanislaus continued to correspond with Mrs. Jolly with the goal of getting the Sisters of Our 
Lady of Mercy on the monument.  In this letter Mrs. Jolly requests a habit be sent so a model for 
the sculptor could wear it.  She also included a picture of Sister Teresa Barry which may be the 
image the sculptor used for our image on the monument.   
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The following is a transcription found in Mother Stanislaus’s scrapbook of the letter she sent back 
to Mrs. Jolly.  There would be OLMs in Washington attending college….they would model our 
habit!! 
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The Monument was unveiled in 1924, before a crowd of 5,000. Cardinal William O’Connell 
presided.  That’s Mrs. Jolly standing behind him.  The monument shows twelve nuns, representing 
the different orders who nursed the wounded of both North and South.  There are twelve nuns 
depicted on the relief and then two bronze statues of women (one representing Peace and the 
other Patriotism) on each side of the granite slab that encompasses the relief. It says above the 
relief, "They Comforted The Dying, Nursed The Wounded, Carried Hope To The Imprisoned, Gave 
In His Name A Drink Of Water To The Thirsty." At the statue's base are the words, "To The Memory 
And In Honor Of The Various Orders of Sisters Who Gave Their Services As Nurses On Battlefields 
And In Hospitals During The Civil War." Unsurprisingly, this is on the National Register of Historic 
Places.  The monument was intended to be placed in Arlington Cemetery but the war department 
objected (too religious) and the piece was plopped down in front of Saint Mathew’s cathedral, to 
the objections of its sculptor Jerome Connor. 
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Sister Anne Francis Campbell 
Happy 60th Jubilee! 

 

Sister Mary Joseph Ritter 
Happy 60th Jubilee! 
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the Sisters made their visits to the Blessed Sacrament either to the convent chapel or to the Cathedral. 

On Bishop Russell’s advent into the Diocese, one of his first promises was to replace the Blessed Sacrament, and 
this he most generously did on the Feast of St. Valentine.  Sister Philomena, the Sister in charge, was most 
pathetically affected, and the Sisters thanked God with an exceedingly great joy.  Father McElroy brought over the 
Blessed Sacrament from the Cathedral.  Father May accompanied him and quietly without pomp or noise after a 
lapse of seventeen years the Blessed Sacrament was again enthroned. 

(Taken from journal of Sister Stanislaus Hanley 

 

Feb. 14, 1918.  Today 
was a particularly 
happy one in the 
Annals of the 
Community.  For 
seventeen years the 
Sisters engaged at 
the Orphanage had 
been deprived of the 
presence of the 
Blessed Sacrament 
through an 
arrangement that had 
been entered into 
with the city officials 
for an appropriation 
for the support of the 
orphans.  To keep this 
appropriation certain 
conditions were 
imposed and one was 
the removal of the 
Blessed Sacrament 
from the orphanage.  
During all these years 
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Pope Francis has designated September 1 as the World Day of Prayer for the Care of Creation. 
Join Pope Francis and Christians around the globe in praying for and taking action for our 
common home on September 1 and the Season of Creation, September 1-October 4 by visiting 
www.SeasonofCreation.org. The Season of Creation is a time to renew our relationship with our 
Creator and all creation through repenting, repairing, and rejoicing together. During the Season of 
Creation, we join our sisters and brothers in the ecumenical family in prayer and action for our 
common home. 

This year, amid crises that have shaken our world, we’re awakened to the urgent need to heal our 
relationships with creation and each other. During the season this year, we enter a time of 
restoration and hope, a jubilee for our Earth, that requires radically new ways of living with 
creation. 

The Season of Creation unites the world’s 2.2 billion Christians around one shared purpose. With so 
much injustice all around us, now is the time for Christians everywhere to come together and show 
the world how to love each other and creation. 
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